UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

8-4-2011

GMAC v. Bach Appellant's Brief Dckt. 38647

A. NATURE OF THE CASE

GMAC file April 24, 2009 a four (4) page complaint,(CT 1-7) each of the first four pages, numbered "Page 4", **b**o which were attached two (2) unmarked exhbits, the first a one sheet document with the top printed "POP ELECTRONIC TITLE DOCUMENTS," and the second (CT 6-7) a reduced in size copy of a purported elongated printed form entitled: RETAIL INSTALMENT SALE CONTRACT, GMAC FLEXIBLE FINANCE PLAN, for buyer CINDY LEE BACH, 10 North 27TH ST, BILLINGS YELLOWSTON, MT 59103 from Dealer, RESSLER MOTOR COMPANY, L&#% W. MAIN BOSEMAND, MT. 59713-0400, Hand written in the upper right corner was "021 /9/0434159."

At the bottom, inside an elongated rectangular outline, there was/were no indications to what/which of the four printed names of finance companies, the purpored contract, if any, was to be or was in fact assigned. (CT: 6) But in the lower right portion of the outlined portion in the boxed section Assigned without recourse or with limited recourse, were the typed words:

"RESSLER MOTOR COMPANY, (followed by a difficult to read signature) and the ONLY written word, "Finance."

The Plaintiff's complaint was: 1) labelled only as: "COMPLAINT FOR CLAIM AND DELIVERY (I.. 8-301)(CT. 1); 2) purportedly in Arzona, Marcipa Countery, "20 day of April, 2009", by a Kathleen Fitzgerald, whose named was first handprintd, the handwritten number "20" appears twice in the verification, (CT \$) re the date of April, 2009; and the complaint itself is purportly singed tw0 (2)days earlier on "22 day of April 2009

- 1 -

by Laura E. Burri, Attroney for Plaintiff, (Ct: 3)

The foregoing verification by Kathleen Fitzgerald, in Maricopa County, Arizona reads in the only two paragraphs thereof:

"That I am an employee of Semperian, Inc., agent for General Motors Acceptance Corporation and am actively engaged in the operations of said corporation and has personal knowledge of the facts contained herein.

That I have read the within and foregoing complaint, knows the contents thereof and <u>believes the facts therein</u> stated to be true and correct and makes this verification this date; behalf of the corporation." (CT 4)(Emphasis added)

(Then follows the date: "Dated this \mathbf{Z}_{0} day of April, 2009.")

On May 27, 2009, Defendant JOHN N. BACH, filed a NOTICE OF MOTION & MOTION . . . SPECIALLY APPEARING TO STRIKE, VOID ANY PURPORTED SERVICE of PROCESS, HIS PERSON AND OVER PURPORTED SUBJECT MATTERS JURISDICTION, ETC. (IRCP, Rules 4(i)(20, 12 (4) & (5); Rule 4(b),(d)(2)" (CT 8-10

From this date, on and continuing through the FINAL JUDGMENT AGAINST JOHN BACH, filed February L, 2010 (CT 158-159), assigned judge, the Honorable Gregory W. Moeller, denied all motions, affirmative defenses and counterclaims, many time unilaterally not addressed not supported by any of plaintiff's counsel's filings or supported arguments. District Judge Gregory Moeller, became biasedly and impartially an advocate and third attorney for Plaintiffs, to such a degree that his prediding over the hearings violateddefendant and counterclaimant's JOHN BACH's procedual and substantive rights of due process and equal protection.

B. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

Appellant's specially appearing motion of may 27, 2009 to strike, void any service over his person and purported subject matters jurisdiction, stated very pertinently:

".. bhe offered complaint is in fact unverified and the purported attached RETAIL INSTALMENT SALE CONTRACT, is per public policies considerations void, if not invalid in the State of Idaho, is by its very tersm, paragraph 7, subject to: "Federal law and Montana law apply to the contract"; that facially/patently, defendant JOHN N. BACH specially appearing was never a signator, no cobuyer, nor anyquaranto, nor agent for deceased defendant CINDY LEE BACH, nor has any purported estate or personal representative been named herein of CINDY LEE BACH, deceased, if such representative does exist; that the purported "VERI-FICATION" is by a wholly unknown and unqualified, nor auththenciated person in the State of Idaho, of a properly licensed or formed corporation or as any purported agent for General Motors Acceptance Corporation, which purported statements of Kathleen Fitzgerald are utberly specious, hearsay, hearsay upon specialationss and other hearsay, without foundation or proper authenticaton and are completely void and/or invalidate 'said offered specious complaint; and that by its very terms of said form, does not disclose that either GMAC, if registered or licenses in Idaho, was intended as any loan creditor, nor that venue, place of State of formation, performance and jurisdiction was ever intended nor agreed to be in Teton County, Idaho. Lastly, based upon the forestated lack of person and subject matter jurisdiction there is no action for Claim and Delia eryper I.C. section 8-301 nor that of foreclosure on any purported true sales agreement, or security agreement in sales transaction or lease in fact; which do not continue nor exist beyond the deaht of CINDY LEE BACH, now deceased. See Stockman Bank of Montana v. Monkota, Inc., (Mont 2008) 342Mont 116 2008 MT 34. 180 P.3d 1125; Dillroe v. Devoe 223 Mont 47, 724 P.2d 171; and also McGill v. Lester, 108 Idaho 561, 700 P.2d 964 1269, 111 Idaho 841.

Were the personal, subject matter and law of Idaho applying issues resolved, to keep any jurisdictions in Teton County, Idaho, such being extremely doubtful, the purported plaintiff and all its claimed, unsworn agents, etc., have failed to allege, of Idaho's U.C.C, section 9-103(1)(d) and the holdings of: Rockwell Inter. Credit Cor. v. Valley Bank (Idaho App 1985) 109 Idaho 406, 707 P.2d 517." (CT 9-10) Despite defendant's request for the presence and use of a court reporter at all hearings before the Court, the district court denied such due to funds and the illness of its regular reporter. The Court's minutes of July 7, 2009 @ 2;12 p.m. (CT 14-17) and the Association of Counsel, filed after the hearing had concluded at 2:37 a.m, (CT 18-19) reveal the admission that only plaintiff's filed a "claim and delivery action to get possession of (the) vehicle." (CT 15)

Appellant argued that: "Car was registered in Bozeman MT; was there for year and a half." ; "Concern is misuse of contractual agreement that does not exist in point of time."; "No where in agreement is there a provision where there is a foreign application of laws."; and "-until care was rergistered and relisted as secured collateral-there is not vehicle This is the woong court, wrong clause, wrong claim." (Ct 16)

On July 21, 2009 the district court judge denied Appellant's motons to strike/quash service and to dismiss. (CT 20-24) Under DISCUSSION, Part 1. the heading, "The Court has jurisdiction over Mr. Bach and the vemicle, the district court, crptically stated: ". The court would further note that Mr. Bach, has not hesitated in the past to avail himself of the idaho Courts when seeking redress for alleged legal wrongs against himl According to the Idaho's 'Long Amm Statute,' Mr. Bach has submitted himself to the jurisdiction of the State of Idaho by owning real property in Idaho and transaction business here. Code Sec5-514(a) and (c)."(CT 21)

(NOTE: The district court's unwarrant personal jab and criticism as aforesaid for exercising his rights and objections, and other misstatements and criticims of Appellant throughout memo's Decision and discussions, (CT 22-24, will be addressed, infra, but ignored

- 4

district court's objective responsibiliies and duties as stated in the Idaho Supreme Court's recent holdings found in West's Pac. Reptr, 3rd Series, July 8, 2011, 252 P. 3d No. 3, pages 1255-81, to wit: <u>State of Idaho v. Lute</u>, 252 P.3d 1255, 1257-59 (Opn by Burdic, Justice (Lack of jurisdiction found after illega Void 13 year served criminal sentence); <u>Stafford v. Kootenai County</u> et al 252 P.3d 1259, 1265 (Lack of jurisdiction and standing or capacity to proceed, etc); and <u>Fuller v. Dave Callister</u>, et al, 0%0 P.3d1266, 1271-73 and 1274).)

August 8, 2009, Appellant filed his ANSWER BY DEFENDANT PRO PER JOHN N. BACH, WITH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES, and DEEENDANT and COUNTERCLAIMANT REQUESTS A 12 PERSON JURY TRIAL <u>WILL NOT</u> <u>STIPULATE TO ANY LESS</u>. (CT 25-30.) John Bach denied in all capacities and conjunctively, disjunctively, jointly and alternatively "all allegations of paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (7), (8), (9), (10) and (11), or the validty, effectiveness or completeness, certainty or claimed agreements, provisions and insertions of that

attached purportd retail inst^{al} lment contract, purportedly executed by CINDY LEE BACH, now deceased, 10 North 27St., Billing, Yellowstone MT 59103." (CT 20)

Appellant's ANSWER Then per his paragraphs 2 and 3, denied further, Par. 2, the he "owes, is indebted to/for or has any obligation or responsibility to pay anu sum or sums of either \$24,047, \$2,490.00, \$17059.18, \$13,175.00 nor \$3,00, nor any other lesser sums or at all as claimed. ."; (and)

per Par. 3, denies "that said complaint is one at all 'For Claim and Delivery, (I.C. Sec 8-301) and further so denies on the aforesaid basis/grounds and averments all and each paragraphs (a) through (f) of plaintiff's prayer, and expressly, specifically denies that plaintiffs has anyrights to recovery of possession of said 2007 Chevolet Equinox, nor for any recovery of \$17,059.18 nor for any prejudgmentinterest of \$4.16 per day fron any commencement date nor

- **Γ**

at all; denies further, that plaintiff has any claim, right or abilities to have such vehicles sold at either public or private sale in anymanner nor in accorance with Article 9, Chapter of the Idaho Uniform Commercial Code, and futher denies on all aforesaid basis, that plaintiff is entitled to recovery nor can it recover all costs and attorneys fee incurred, in case of default or otherwise whatsoever of the sum of \$3,000.00 or any sum." (CT 26-27)

Under and in Appellant's INDIVIDUAL AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES, he averred specific legal and factual barred aswell as illegalities and public offenses/ violations of public policies, per pargraphs 4 through 8.(CT 27-28) Affirmative defenses paragraph 9, set forth an additional and further issues, per subparagraphs a) through e). (CT 28) These five additional separate torts were:

- a) An unsafe, dangerous and defective vehicle, to operate in high alpine country, roads and highway arteries
 . . (as)exist in Teton Counties, Idaho and Wyoming over and via Teton Pass and other highways through Yellowstone and/or Dubose, Wyoming, etc.
- b) A lemon vehicle under Montana laws-statutes.
- c) Breaches of express & implied warranties of fitness for particular purposes, of merchantibility, etc under Idaho and Montana statutes- Mont CPA, MCA 61-4-502/3.
- d) Deceptive and unfair commercial practice of sales-financing under Idaho & Montana statutes, MCA 30-14-224(1) and 30-14-133(1).
- e) Violations of Federal RICO Act, per interstate commerce transgression with 2 prior overt acts of a jointly run enterprise, conspiracy and organization in fact, criminally; plus violation of the Idaho Racketeering Statute, b y the current and other unlwful, unfair and corrput collection practices, which may require this counterclaim to be amended to initiate a class actionfor moneys so laundered. (CT 28)

Appellant's COUNTERCLAIMS, "In conjunction, collusion. joint venture and civil conspiracy, etc., with General Motors and Resseler Motor Company of Bozeman, Montans, along with other unknown counterclaim defendants . .designated for now as DOES 1 through 20, per his paragraph 11, he incorporated his previous paragraphs 1 through 9, as separate counterclaims.

Appellant's counterclaim's last three paragraphs, numbered 11 through 13, Paragraph 11, averred that GMAC, "and those entities, persons, etc., acting ith it have slandered, both the title and ownership, possession, use and value of said Chevolet Equinox vechicle, and further, have crafted witbout anu mutual agreement having been entered, to falsely now assert, cliam and pursue an illegal, void and criminal act of seeking to collect moneys where there is no contract in existence to do so; such efforts being against counterclaimant JOHN N. BACH, who neither a signator, guarantor nor surety on the illegal contract, no ponger existing."(CT 29)

Paragraph 13 stated:

"By design, manufacture and national and states' marketing efforts of counterclaim defendant and said entitles/persons acting in conjunction or with joint tortious relationships, built and sold a dangerous, defective and unsafe product which was sold to JOHN N. BACH's wife, to use over said high mountain roads and highways. Counterclaim defendatn and its cofeasors failed to disclose that the automatic breaking system, the transmission and four wheel drive features, would not and didnot operate safely via road and seasons' conditions thereon, normally encountered in Idaho, Montana, Wyoming and other near states." (CT 29-30)

Paragraph 14's language averred generally that the "proximate result. . .did violate the rights of counterclaimant, and his wife when alive as to those claims set forth, in paragraph 9, subparagraps b), c), d) and e), of page 4, supra._{" (CT 30)}

GMAC's RESPONSE TO COUNTERCLAIM was filed Aug. 21, 2009 (CT 31-33)

- 7 -

Dec. 9, 2009, Respondent's MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDMENT was filed. (CT 34-35) GMAC's MEMORANDUM IN SUPBORT OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT. "The basis and grounds for this Motion (was)set forth in the (Respondent's) Memorandum in Support . . and is supported by the record and pleadings on file with the Court." (Ct 34)

Respondent's Memorandum, contended Appellant per the Decree of Summary Administration re In the Matter of the Estate of of Cindy L. Bach, Teton case number 08-420 was awarded the 2007 Equinox (misspelled as Equimax)and the Decree provide that John Bach "shall assume and be responsible for all indebtedness which might be a claim against the estate.' An affidavit of Lauaa E. Burri in Support of Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment had a copy of the DECREE OF SUMMARY ADMINISTRATION (&15-3-1205(b)I.C.) attached thereto. (CT 35, 42-44)

GMAC's memorandum claimed it was entitled to possession of the vehicle and in the last sentence before its CONCLUSION stated: "Lastly, the counterclaim filed by Defendant JOHN BACH fails to state a claim upon which relief can be grabted and should be dismissed." (CT 40) No where in said memorandum nor in any document did GMAC's counsel address, set forth nor cite any arguments, case or legal authorities of said statment, which appeared as a personal, biased and prejudical extra judicial involvement of the district court judge violating Apellant's substantive due process rights.(CT 40) Respondent's counsel filed no further affidavit and relief completely on the purported((nvalid /inadmissible) verification of Kathleen Fitzgeral, an employee of Semperian, Inc., who stated she "believes the facts therein stated to be true and correct." (Ct 4)

- 8

December 11, 2009 Appellant filed a Motion for Immediate Court's order Continuing Summary Judment, Jan. 5, 2010; and for Further Immediate Order STriking Plaintiff's said Filings and it's Unverified/Unsigned Complaint, IRCP, Rules 11(a) Verification; 56(c) & (g); & 12(f). (CT 48-50) The basis of such requested continuance was due to Appellant's personal and family plans to celebrate Montenegrian Orthodox Church Christmas Festivities per the Gregorian calendar, Jan 4-8, 2010 in Southern Calif. (CT 48-49)

In Appellant's such request and motions stated:

". . Earlier this Court in its Memorandum DEcision denying Defendant's Motion to Quash Service of Process and Motion for Dismissal, dated Oct. 21, 2009, page 2, paragraph 2, thereof, 'incorrectly'reached the conclusion that defendant had not raised any authorities for his oral argument that the plaintiff's complaint was unverified by an out of Idaho state, corporate (purported) agent, not registered nor licensed in and by Idaho law to so sign or purportedly verify said plaintiff's complaint. The statements by the court therein were never refuted by Plaintiff's counsel, and during oral argument, JOHN N. BACH, was both physically andmentally affected by a most recent"stroke, trobotic complete" which required his use of a cane and other prosthetci devises to appear at such oral hearing; defendant was on said date still in throws of rehabilitative physical and speech therapy for such strokeeffects." (CT 49)

Appellant then, "after further reveiw and research" was submitting that Rule 11(a), Rulel1(c) and 56(c)(d) and (e) of the purported verification of plaintiff's complaint "most be stricken as a matter of law and the entire motion for summary judgment is without jurisdiction, legal nor factual basis. citing among four cases, that of Evans v. Twin Falls Co., 118 Idaho 210, 796 P.2d 87 (1990), cert.den. 498 U.S. 1086, 111 S.Ct. 960, 112 L.Ed 2d 1048(1991)(must show oath as required per I.C. 51-109); and <u>Tri-State Land Co. v. Roberts</u>, 131 Idaho 835, 965 P.2d 195 (Ct. App. 1998) citing also to Rule 56(e) re form of affidavit.

~ Q

January 19, 2010 Appellant filed further his OPPOSITION, REFUTATIONS& MOTION TO STRIKE, VACATE & DENY WITH PREJUDICE PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT. (CT 51-50) He further filed therewith his personal AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN N. BACH, consisting of five pages (CT 56-59) attached to which was his deceased wife's copy copy of a much different and incompleted, restricted terms and verbal conditions of effectiveness, The Clerk's Transcript has an incomplete, photocopy as CT 60).

Appellant has obtained an verified copy of the complete document which Cindy L. Bach signed, without any agreement, commitment or anyaddendum whatosever, that GMAC was the financing credit entity. Such certified copy is made a part hereof, as APPENDIX ONE, to this APPELLANT"S OPENING BRIEF, on the right inside last cover page hereof. Said APPENDIX ONE is a corrected and replaced page CT 60 of the Clerk's Transcript herein,

Within APPELLANT's said OPPOSITION, REFUTATIONS & MOTION to Strike Plaintiff's Summary Judgment were three (3) complete pages (CT 54-56) "many unproven and supposedly required not just averyed fact, to wit:

- "1. Does GMAC have standing, as it is now a matter of common knowledge and elgal fact that GMAC IS IN BANKRUPTCY?
 - 2. Did Cindy Bach ever sign a completed contract of agreement with RESLLER MOTOR CO. of Bozeman for the purchase of what she specified she wanted in a vehicle she sought to purchase?
- 3, What written authority did Cindy Bach execute with and for GMAC, withfull knowledge of what GAMAC was financing?
- 4. When, how and per what recording, registering or filing in both the States of Montana and Idaho did Cindy Bach ever consent in writing to a security interest or right to be held by GMAC in the vehicle she did purchase?

- 10 -

- 5. Under what showing of both specified personal knowledge and qualifications did supposedly an employee (Kathleen Fizgerald) of Semperian Inc, possess and utilize, to pruportedly sign the verification of the complaint? (The District Court both in error and haste in its conclusions assert forth in its Memorandum Decision upon which Plaintiff reliefs. See Mobley and Sons, Inc---Weaver (Mont. 2009) 218 P.3d 472 specifically at PAGE 472 Iattorney's affidavit flawed and functionally defective, as his being, "familiar with the facts herein," was clearly testifying to information provided by his client, the veracity of which he had no personal knowledge."); also: <u>State Farm Fire and Cas. v</u>. Forced Aire (Utah App. 2009) 202 P.3d 299, 303-304 (Contractor's affidavit in opposition to summary judgment based on his own person knowledge and created material genuine issues of fact which more than precluded granting of any summary judgment; credibility and weight of evidence is for a jury to decide.
- 6. Did theform agreement, a true copy of which is attached to JOHN BACH'S Affidavit hereto, meet the public policies of Montana or was it such of unsonscionabilities, coercion, fraudulent practices, etc?
- 7. If GMAC does not have either standing, capacity to sue or even an secuirty interests in said vehicle WHAT IRREFUTABLE FACTS AND IDAHO LAWS OR STATUTES ALLOW IT NOW TO SEEK REPOSSESSION AND RESALE WITHOUT ANY STATED ACCEPTABLE CURRENT COMMERCIBLE REASONABLE PRACTICES?" (CT 54-56)

The AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN N. BACH, offered Jan 10, 2010 in gpposition to Respondent's summary judgment motion(CT 50-57, par. 1

and 2, set forth his legal attorney and law practices qualifications ofover 28 years of practice in commercial code repossessions of vehicles, tractors, mobile homes, motor bike, snowmobile, etc.,, for the testimony -he gave via said affidavit.

In his paragraph 3 (CT 57-58) ge testified:

"I personallyaccompanied, driving Cindy L. Bach, my wife, to Ressler Motor Co., of Bozeman, Montana and was present personally during the discussions and negotiations conducted and had on or about January 6, 2997, as U recall a Saturday, No representatives nor officers of GMAC were present nor took part in such discussions. Most auspiciously, the officials of Ressler Motors were agreed that it as the selling dealership would finance personally the vehicle to be sold Cindy, as one of the owners of Jackson Hole Aviation, where Cindy was the chief

- 11

accountant and human resources director, was a personal friend of the owner of Ressler, and would guarantee any payments. At. no time was GMAC to be a lender nor financer of the vehicle to be purchased by Cindy, and for this reason GMAC was never identified nor state nor "XX"ed in any box or blanks as financing the vehcile. For such reasons, the vehicles was to be registered and licensed in Montana, Bozeman, using both Ressler's and Jackson Hole Aijation's local Bozeman addess or post office box."

"4. Attached hereto is a complete, accurate and unaltered copy of the document signed by Cindy Bach which reveals the numerous blanks which were neither completed nor referenced in anymanner for financing trhoug GMAC." (CT 57-58)

The attached copy received by Cindy Bach, did not have the handwritten numbers, as was contained on the copy attached to the Complaint such missing numbers of "02 /9/0434159". (See Page 1, supra last sentence of first full paragraph.)

In Appellant'S CLOSING BRIEF RE SUPPORT OF HIS MOTION TO STRIKE, DENY & VACATE WITH PREJUDICE PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, filed Feb. 1, 2010 (CT 63-75) he stated and

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