# UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

9-2-2011

# GMAC v. Bach Respondent's Brief Dckt. 38647

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

# **1. Factual Background**

Cindy Lee Bach purchased a 2007 Chevrolet Equinox from Ressler Motor Company of Bozeman, Montana on January 6, 2007. She signed a contract entitled "GMAC Flexible Finance Plan" (hereafter referred to as the "Contract"). R., pgs. 001 and 006. Appellant John Bach did not sign the Contract. The amount financed was \$24,047.00. The contract required monthly payments of \$498.00 each. R., pgs. 001 and 006. The payments became in default. At the time the Verified Complaint was filed on April 24, 2009, payments were five (5) months past due for the months of December, 2008 through April, 2009. R., 002. The outstanding balance due on the Contract was \$17,059.18 as of March 30, 2009. R., 002.

The Contract provides that Ms Bach was granting a security interest in the vehicle. R., pgs. 006 and 007. The Contract also states that, upon default, the vehicle can be repossessed. R., p. 007. At the bottom of the first page of the Contract, the document provides "Seller assigns its interest in this contract to XX GMAC". R, p. 006. The first page of the contract further provides that "The contract contains the entire agreement between you and us relating to this contract. Any change to the contract must be in writing and we must sign it. No oral changes are binding." R., p. 006.

After the Contract was signed, Ms Bach died. R., p.0042. John Bach was the spouse of Cindy Lee Bach. R. p. 0042. On December 1, 2008 a Decree of Summary Administration was entered in the probate estate of Cindy L. Bach in Teton County. R. pgs. 0042 and 0043. The

Decree provides that John Bach is the surviving spouse and sole heir of Cindy Bach. R. p. 0042. The Decree further provided that the property of the estate included a 2007 Chevrolet Equimax [sic] . VIN 2CND123F576064987. R. p. 0043. The vehicle was distributed to John Bach. R. p. 0043. The Decree provided that John Bach "shall assume and be responsible for all indebtedness which might be a claim against the estate." R. p. 0043.

#### 2. Procedural Background

The Complaint in this matter was filed on April 24, 2009. R. pgs. 001 - 007. The suit was a replevin action under Idaho Code §8-301 to recover possession of the 2007 Chevrolet Equinox. Mr Bach was personally served with the Summons and Complaint on May 7, 2009. R. p. 0011. The Complaint was verified. R. p. 004. On May 27, 2009, Mr Bach filed a "Notice of Motion & Motions by Defendant John N. Bach, Specially Appearing to Strike, Void any Purported Service of Process, His Person and Over Purported Subject Matters Jurisdiction, etc." R. pgs. 008-0013. The Motion was heard before the District Court on July 7, 2009. R. pgs. 0014-0017. The District Court issued its Memorandum Decision denying the Motion on July 21, 2009. R. pgs 0020-0024. Mr Bach filed an Answer on May 6, 2009. R. pgs. 0025-0030.

GMAC filed a Motion for Summary Judgment on December 9, 2009. R. pgs. 0034 -0035. On May 3, 2010, the District Court entered its Memorandum Decision after hearing Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment. R. pgs. 0090-0098. The Court granted Summary Judgment in favor of Plaintiff and dismissed the Counterclaim filed by John Bach. R. pgs. 0090-0098. On May 17, 2010, John Bach filed various motions objecting to the Memorandum Decision of the Court. R. pgs. 0099-0109. These motions include a Motion for Reconsideration,

for an order of relief, for a new hearing and for an order allowing amended pleadings. R. pgs. 0099-0109. On July 6, 2010, John Bach filed a further Memorandum in Support of His Motions Filed May 17, 2010. R. pgs. 0110-0114. On September 3, 2009, the District Court entered its Amended Memorandum Decision again granting the Motion for Summary Judgment filed by GMAC and denying Mr Bach's other motions. R. pgs. 0141-0155. The Final Judgment Against John Bach was entered by the lower Court on February 1, 2011. R. pgs. 0158-0159. Mr Bach filed a Notice of Appeal on March 15, 2011. R. pgs. 0160-0165.

#### 3. Standard of Review

The standard of review on an appeal from a summary judgment is the standard of review properly applied by the trial court when originally ruling on the motion. The court must review the pleadings, depositions, affidavits, and admissions on file. The Court should liberally construe the record in the light most favorable to the party opposing the motion, drawing all reasonable inferences and conclusions in that party's favor. *Featherston v. Allstate Insurance Co.*, 125 Idaho 840, 875 P.2d 937 (1994).

#### **ATTORNEY FEES ON APPEAL**

GMAC requests attorney fees on this appeal. The Contract provides for an award of attorney fees "If we hire an attorney who is not our salaried employee to collect what you owe, you will pay the attorney's reasonable fee and court costs the law permits." R. p. 007. Idaho Code 12-120(1) allows for an award of attorney fees where the amount plead is twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000.00) or less. Idaho Code 12-120(3) also provides for an award of

attorney fees on an open account or contract relating to the purchase or sale of goods, to the prevailing party. Idaho Code 12-121 allows for attorney fees to the prevailing party.

#### <u>ARGUMENT</u>

#### 1. Issues on Appeal.

The Notice of Appeal filed by Mr Bach contained a total of seven issues on appeal. R. pgs. 0160-0164. The Appellant's Opening Brief contains a list of four issues on appeal. This brief will address the four issues on appeal as stated in Appellant's Opening Brief.

#### 2. Was Jurisdiction and Venue Required to be in Montana.

The first issue on appeal is whether jurisdiction and venue of this action was required to be in the State of Montana. The vehicle in question was purchased on January 6, 2007 in Montana from Ressler Motor Company of Bozeman, Montana. R. p. 006. The Contract states that "Federal law and Montana law apply to this contract." R. p. 007. The automobile was titled in the State of Idaho on January 18, 2007. R. p. 0140. The address used for Mrs Bach on the title was 400 N 152 E, PO Box 101, Driggs, Idaho 83422.

The Complaint was filed in this matter for recovery of the 2007 Chevrolet Equinox in Idaho. This is an *in rem* action under Idaho Code §8-301 to recover possession of the vehicle after payments became in default. By the very nature of the type of action involved, the suit was required to be filed in the State where the vehicle was located. If the suit had been filed in Montana, GMAC would be unable to obtain possession of the vehicle located in Idaho with a Montana Writ of Possession. The suit necessarily had to be filed in the State where the vehicle was located, the State of Idaho.

In addition, Idaho Code §5-404 requires that an action be tried in the County in which the defendant resides at the commencement of the action. It is undisputed that Mr Bach resided in the State of Idaho when the action was commenced. R. p. 0142. He was personally served with the Summons and Complaint in Teton County, Idaho. R. p. 011. Mr Bach further admitted that the vehicle was present in the state of Idaho. R. p. 0147.

Idaho Code §5-514 is Idaho's "Long Arm Statute". The statute provides under subsection (a) that acts subjecting a person to Idaho jurisdiction include transacting business within the state. This term is defined as "the doing of any act for the purpose of realizing pecuniary benefit or accomplishing or attempting to accomplish, transact or enhance the business purpose or objective or any part thereof of such person ...."

Mr. Bach has transacted business in Idaho within the meaning of Idaho Code §5-514. He filed a Petition for Summary Administration in Teton County, Idaho. R. pgs. 0042-0043. The Petition was filed under Idaho Code §15-3-1205. This statute allows a surviving spouse to file a summary administration of a deceased spouse's probate estate. A Decree of Summary Administration was obtained distributing assets and debts of the estate to Mr Bach. R. 0042.<sup>1</sup>

The District Court was correct in finding that jurisdiction and venue of this matter was in the State of Idaho. As stated by the Court, "The Court has *in personam* jurisdiction over Bach's person because he has admitted that he resides within the state of Idaho. The Court also has *in rem* jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case because Bach has admitted that the vehicle is

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The Transcript in this matter has the Decree of Summary Administration at page 0042-0043. This document was actually attached to the Affidavit of Laura E. Burri in support of Plaintiff GMAC's Motion for Summary Judgment, pages 0044-0045 of the transcript. The Decree should be viewed as an attachment to the Affidavit for the purposes of this appeal.

present in the state of Idaho." R. p. 0147. This Court should find that the District Court of Teton County, Idaho was the proper forum for the action filed by GMAC to recover possession of the 2007 Chevrolet Equinox.

# 3. Was Plaintiff's Complaint Properly Verified.

Mr Bach next asserts the issue as to whether the Complaint filed by GMAC was properly verified for the purpose of the Summary Judgment Motion. The Complaint was verified by Kathleen FitzGerald. The verification stated that Ms FitzGerald was an employee of Semperian, Inc., agent for General Motors Acceptance Corporation. The verification provided that Ms FitzGerald had personal knowledge of the facts and believed the facts to be true and correct. The verification was notarized in the state of Arizona. R. P. 004.

Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 11 (c) provides that a verification:

shall be a written statement or declaration by a party or the party's attorney of record sworn to or affirmed before an officer authorized to take depositions by Rule 28, that the affiant believes the facts stated to be true, unless a verification upon personal knowledge is required. When a corporation is a party, the verification may be made by an officer thereof.

In this matter, the verification was signed by Ms. FitzGerald as an employee of an agent of GMAC. An agent is defined as "a person authorized by another to act for him, one intrusted with another's business." Blacks Law Dictionary, 5<sup>th</sup> Ed. 1983. As such, Ms FitzGerald could act in place of GMAC in executing the verification. As required by Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 11( c), the verification states that she believes the facts stated to be true.

Although a corporation is a party in this matter, the verification is not required to be signed by an officer. Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 11( c) provides that the verification <u>may</u> be

made by an officer. The statute does not say that an officer <u>shall</u> make the verification. As stated in Blacks Law Dictionary, 5<sup>th</sup> ed. 1983, use of the word "may" instead of the word "shall" is indicative of discretion or choice between two or more alternatives. Therefore, a corporate officer may sign a verification but it is not required in order for a corporation to execute a verification.

Nowhere in Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 11( c) is there any requirement that a verification be notarized by an Idaho notary. Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 28(a) provides that depositions shall be taken before a person authorized by the laws of the state of Idaho, by the United States, or of the place where the examination is held, within or without the state of Idaho. Therefore, a notary public for the state of Arizona may properly notarize a verification to be used in a Court of the State of Idaho.

The District Court found that the verification in this matter was sufficient. The Court held that Mr. Bach had failed to produce any evidence that the party verifying the complaint was legally incompetent to do so. The Court further found that the Arizona notarization was sufficient. R. p. 0146. This ruling is in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho and should be upheld.

#### 4. Did the District Court give Personal Hearsay Testimony.

Mr Bach claims that the District Court inserted personal comments into its decisions that were hearsay. Although it is unclear from the briefing, it appears that Mr Bach asserts this issue on the basis of the Court's comments pertaining to the weather conditions in Teton County, Idaho as contained in its Memorandum Decision. R. pgs. 0090-0098. The other matter raised is

apparently the assumption of liability under the Decree of Summary Administration. R. p. 0119. The Memorandum Decision was withdrawn and replaced by the Amended Memorandum Decision dated September 3, 2010. R. p. 0141. The Court addressed these issues in its Amended Memorandum Decision, R. 0149-0151.

Judicial Notice can be made of facts that are not subject to reasonable dispute, are generally known within the jurisdiction of the trial court or are capable of accurate and ready determination. Idaho Rule of Evidence 201(b). The Court's recognition of winter weather in Teton County is a fact generally known by anyone that resides within the County. Any statement by the Court about the weather in a location where the Court resides is a matter appropriate for judicial notice as an item not reasonably in dispute. In addition, the court noted that "there is no reason why such a statement would indicate any bias against Bach by the Court. Nevertheless, in order to clear the record of unnecessary issues, the Court has removed the statement from this amended order." R. p. 0150.

As to the reference to the summary administration, Idaho Code §15-3-1205 provides that a surviving spouse that files a summary administration is distributed assets and debts of the deceased spouse. The court could raise the issue sua sponte. *See Parkwest Hones, LLC v. Barnson,* 149 Idaho 603, 238 P.3d 203 (2010), R. p. 0150. In addition, the Decree of Summary Administration was attached to the Affidavit of Laura E. Burri in Support of Plaintiffs GMAC's Motion for Summary Judgment. R. p. 0042-0043. Therefore, the Court could properly consider the information in deciding the Motion for Summary Judgment filed by GMAC.

#### 5. Did GMAC Mislead or Abuse the Process and Fail to State a Cause of Action.

GMAC did not mislead the court or Mr Bach in this matter. There is no evidence in the record to show that GMAC did anything other than file its Complaint and later a Motion for Summary Judgment. The procedure throughout the case has not been an abuse of process. GMAC has availed itself of the available remedies under Idaho law.

GMAC did clearly state a cause of action. The verified Complaint set forth the information required under Idaho Code §8-301. R. pgs. 001-007. Ms. Bach purchased the vehicle. GMAC was assignee of the seller and held the security interest in the vehicle. The payments were delinquent. All of these facts are undisputed by Mr Bach. GMAC requested that a judgment and writ of possession be entered entitling it to assistance of the Teton County Sheriff to obtain possession of the vehicle. These facts state a cause of action on the part of GMAC. This Court on appeal should find that there was no misleading or abusive actions on the part of GMAC. Further GMAC has stated a cause of action entitling it to relief.

# **CONCLUSION**

The Final Judgment against John Bach should be upheld by this Court. GMAC has properly brought before this court a cause of action for claim and delivery under Idaho Code §8-301. Jurisdiction was proper in Teton County, Idaho where both the vehicle and Mr Bach were located. The Complaint was properly verified for the purposes of the Summary Judgment Motion filed by GMAC. The lower court did not abuse its discretion as to judicial notice taken by the Court. GMAC asks this Court to affirm the decision of the lower Court and award attorney fees to it for defending this appeal.